eeds

CITY COUNCIL

Public Document Pack

SCRUTINY BOARD (ENVIRONMENT AND HOUSING)

Meeting to be held in Civic Hall, Leeds, LS1 1UR on
Thursday, 8th December, 2016 at 10.00 am

(A pre-meeting will take place for ALL Members of the Board at 9.30 a.m.)

MEMBERSHIP

Councillors

J Bentley

A Blackburn
K Bruce

D Collins

A Gabriel

A Garthwaite
P Grahame
A Khan

M Lyons

J Procter (Chair)
K Ritchie

G Wilkinson

Weetwood;

Farnley and Wortley;
Rothwell;

Horsforth;

Beeston and Holbeck;
Headingley;

Cross Gates and Whinmoor;
Burmantofts and Richmond Hill;
Temple Newsam;
Wetherby;

Bramley and Stanningley;
Wetherby;

Please note: Certain or all items on this agenda may be recorded

Principal Scrutiny Adviser:
Angela Brogden

Tel: 24 74553
Produced on Recycled Paper



AGENDA

Item
No

Ward/Equal
Opportunities

Item Not
Open

Page
No

APPEALS AGAINST REFUSAL OF INSPECTION
OF DOCUMENTS

To consider any appeals in accordance with
Procedure Rule 25* of the Access to Information
Procedure Rules (in the event of an Appeal the
press and public will be excluded).

(* In accordance with Procedure Rule 25, notice of
an appeal must be received in writing by the Head
of Governance Services at least 24 hours before
the meeting).

EXEMPT INFORMATION - POSSIBLE
EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

1 To highlight reports or appendices which
officers have identified as containing exempt
information, and where officers consider that
the public interest in maintaining the
exemption outweighs the public interest in
disclosing the information, for the reasons
outlined in the report.

2 To consider whether or not to accept the
officers recommendation in respect of the
above information.

3 If so, to formally pass the following
resolution:-

RESOLVED - That the press and public be
excluded from the meeting during
consideration of the following parts of the
agenda designated as containing exempt
information on the grounds that it is likely, in
view of the nature of the business to be
transacted or the nature of the proceedings,
that if members of the press and public were
present there would be disclosure to them of
exempt information, as follows:

No exempt items have been identified.




Item
No

Ward/Equal
Opportunities

Item Not
Open

Page
No

LATE ITEMS

To identify items which have been admitted to the
agenda by the Chair for consideration.

(The special circumstances shall be specified in
the minutes.)

DECLARATION OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY
INTERESTS

To disclose or draw attention to any disclosable
pecuniary interests for the purposes of Section 31
of the Localism Act 2011 and paragraphs 13-16 of
the Members’ Code of Conduct.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND
NOTIFICATION OF SUBSTITUTES

To receive any apologies for absence and
notification of substitutes.

MINUTES - 24 NOVEMBER 2016

To confirm as a correct record, the minutes of the
meeting held on 24t November 2016.

SCRUTINY INQUIRY INTO IMPROVING AIR
QUALITY IN LEEDS - SESSION 2

To receive a report from the Head of Governance
and Scrutiny Support presenting information in
relation to session 2 of the Board'’s inquiry into
improving air quality in Leeds.

PECKFIELD LANDFILL SITE - UPDATE
To receive a report from the Head of Governance
and Scrutiny Support presenting a general update

and written response from the Environment
Agency in relation to Peckfield Landfill Site.

WORK SCHEDULE

To consider the Board’s work schedule for the
forthcoming municipal year.

19 -
38

39 -
54



Item Ward/Equal Item Not Page
No Opportunities | Open No
10 DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING

Thursday, 19" January 2017 at 10 am (Pre-
meeting for all Board Members at 9.30 am)

THIRD PARTY RECORDING

Recording of this meeting is allowed to enable
those not present to see or hear the proceedings
either as they take place (or later) and to enable
the reporting of those proceedings. A copy of the
recording protocol is available from the contacts on
the front of this agenda.

Use of Recordings by Third Parties — code of
practice

a) Any published recording should be
accompanied by a statement of when and
where the recording was made, the context
of the discussion that took place, and a
clear identification of the main speakers
and their role or title.

b) Those making recordings must not edit the
recording in a way that could lead to
misinterpretation or misrepresentation of
the proceedings or comments made by
attendees. In particular there should be no
internal editing of published extracts;
recordings may start at any point and end
at any point but the material between those
points must be complete.




43

44

45

46

47

48

Agenda Iltem 6

SCRUTINY BOARD (ENVIRONMENT AND HOUSING)
THURSDAY, 24TH NOVEMBER, 2016
PRESENT: Councillor J Procter in the Chair

Councillors J Bentley, A Blackburn,

K Bruce, D Collins, A Gabriel,

A Garthwaite, A Khan, M Lyons, S Ragan,
K Ritchie and G Wilkinson

Chair's Opening Remarks

The Chair advised that arrangements were now being made to appoint a new
Chair of the Scrutiny Board following his recent appointment as a Member of
the European Parliament (MEP). The Board congratulated the Chair on his
recent appointment.

Exempt Information - Possible Exclusion of the Press and Public

RESOLVED - That the press and public be excluded from the meeting during
consideration of the following parts of the agenda designated as containing
exempt information on the grounds that it is likely, in view of the nature of the
business to be transacted or the nature of the proceedings, that if members of
the press and public were present there would be disclosure to them of
exempt information, as follows:

Agenda item 7 — Part consideration of Community Safety Related Matters
under the provisions of Access to information Procedure Rule 10.4 (2) and (7)
‘Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual’ and
‘Information relating to any action taken or to be taken in connection with the
prevention, investigation or prosecution of crime.’

Late Items

There were no late items.

Declaration of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests

There were no disclosable pecuniary interests declared to the meeting.
Apologies for Absence and Notification of Substitutes

An apology for absence was submitted by Councillor P Grahame.

Notification had been received that Councillor D Ragan was to substitute for
Councillor P Grahame.

Minutes - 13 October 2016

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Thursday, 8th December, 2016

Page 1



49

50

RESOLVED - That the minutes of the meeting held on 13 October 2016 be
approved as a correct record.

Matters arising from the minutes
Minute No. 40 — Housing Related Matters (Tenant Scrutiny Board)

Reference was made to the Board’s request for further information in respect
to the Tenant Scrutiny Board’s governance and support arrangements. It was
highlighted that the Chairs of the Scrutiny Board and the Corporate
Governance and Audit Committee have been provided with a briefing note
from Housing Leeds in the first instance and that the intention is to use the
Scrutiny Board’s next Housing themed meeting in January to discuss this
further with Board Members.

Community Safety Related Matters

The Director of Environment and Housing submitted a report which provided a
brief overview of community safety related themes / services that had been
identified by the Board.

The following were in attendance:

- Councillor Debra Coupar, Executive Member for Communities

- Councillor Josie Jarosz, Leeds Member of the West Yorkshire Police
and Crime Panel

- Neil Evans, Director of Environment and Housing

- Superintendent Sam Millar, Chief Officer (Community Safety)

- Harvinder Saimbhi, Head of Anti-Social Behaviour.

The key areas of discussion were:
Addressing anti-social behaviour

e Development of the out of hours’ service to receive and log calls, which
was welcomed by the Board.

e The types of support aimed at encouraging individuals to report crime.
However, it was also suggested that the service seeks legal advice on
whether existing witness statement forms could be changed to help
protect the identity of witnesses, particularly from the perpetrators.

e Confirmation that there had been a small increase in the reporting of
hate crime since Brexit. The Board was advised about the
development of local reporting centres and also the proactive work
being undertaken with local schools.

e The use of restorative practice methodologies to resolve cases. Linked
to this, Members cited examples of positive initiatives with
organisations such as the Blue Cross and Dogs Trust which involve the
use of animals as part of a rehabilitation programme for offenders. It

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Thursday, 8th December, 2016

Page 2



was therefore suggested that this approach be explored in the
development of a local menu of restorative practice methods.

e Concern about the costs associated with replacing Designated Public
Places Orders (DPPOs) with Public Space Protection Orders (PSPOs).
It was noted that these would also require careful monitoring to ensure
their effectiveness.

¢ In acknowledging the positive work being undertaken with local
schools, Members were mindful that the service also needs to look
beyond the school environment when engaging with young people in
localities. This point was also acknowledged as part of the work linked
to the establishment of a Hate Crime Strategic Board.

e The Board acknowledged the vital role of local Police Community
Support Officers in working closely with local communities in
addressing anti-social behaviour. In acknowledging the commitment to
reach the full PCSO complement by early next year, particular
references were made to ensuring that local ward allocations are kept
separate to PCSO commitments allocated to city wide initiatives, such
as the Managed Approach in Holbeck.

Addressing youth offending

e Particular reference was made to the approaches taken in addressing
gang culture and it was noted that existing strategies adopt a multi-
agency approach across localities.

e The Board highlighted a need for additional resources to also support
and encourage the take up of youth activities in communities.

e Whilst acknowledging the Council’s efforts in working closely with
employers to help address youth unemployment generally across the
city, the Board recognised the need to strengthen links with employers
in supporting young offenders into work too.

Tackling begging across the city

e Clarification about the support available to people begging on the
street. The Board was advised about outreach services, hostels and
signposting.

e The need to develop effective communication and engagement
strategies aimed at publicising how best to support people begging, i.e.
offering food instead of money and supporting local charities and
organisations. Linked to this, Members also recognised the need to
clearly publicise a contact number that people can use if they are
concerned about the welfare or behaviour of someone begging in the
city.

The future provision of CCTV

e The important role of Community Committees regarding future
provision of CCTV and the need for them to be consulted as a key
stakeholder. Linked to this, it was requested that Community

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Thursday, 8th December, 2016

Page 3



51

Committees be provided with details of the location of existing cameras
and priority areas.

¢ Whilst it was noted that the performance information reports to Elected
Members have ceased pending further development, the Board urged
that the new reports be developed and circulated as soon as possible.

e Confirmation that the review of provision included a focus on high rise
buildings.

e An update on development of soft market testing and the importance of
wireless connectivity to provide greater flexibility.

e The role of PPPU and development of a Project Board to support this
area of work.

Following consideration of further community safety related matters,
designated as exempt under the provisions of Access to Information
Procedure Rule 10.4 (2) and (7), which was considered in private during the
meeting, it was

RESOLVED -

(a) That the report be noted
(b) That the above requests for information be provided.

(Councillor A Blackburn joined the meeting at 10.20am during the
consideration of this item.)

Work Schedule

The Head of Governance Services and Scrutiny Support submitted a report
which invited Members to consider the Board’s work schedule for the 2016/17
municipal year.

The Board noted that the December Board meeting was themed around
Environment and included the next session of the Board’s Inquiry into Air
Quality and an update on Peckfield Landfill Site.

The Board requested that further information surrounding the Pubwatch
scheme is included as part of the next Community Safety themed meeting in
February 2017. It was noted that the Police and Crime Commissioner had
also been invited to attend this particular meeting.

The Board was notified of the work being undertaken by the Strategy and
Resources Scrutiny Board to facilitate the views of Scrutiny in relation to the
development of a refreshed Best Council Plan. A working group meeting had
been provisionally scheduled for Monday 19" December to undertake this
work and other Scrutiny Boards had been invited to nominate up to 3
representatives to contribute to this working group. During the meeting
Councillor Garthwaite volunteered to attend on behalf of the Environment and
Housing Scrutiny Board. Other Board Members were advised to contact the
Board’s Principal Scrutiny Adviser as soon as possible if they also wished to
attend this working group meeting.

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Thursday, 8th December, 2016

Page 4



52

RESOLVED -

(a) That further information surrounding the Pubwatch scheme is included as
part of the next Community Safety themed meeting in February 2017

(b) That Councillor Garthwaite attends the working group meeting of the
Strategy and Resources Scrutiny Board to represent the Board in the
discussions surrounding the development of a refreshed Best Council
Plan.

(c) That any other Board Members wishing to attend the working group
meeting of the Strategy and Resources Scrutiny Board notifies the
Principal Scrutiny Adviser as soon as possible.

Date and Time of Next Meeting

Thursday, 8 December 2016 at 10.00am (pre-meeting for all Board Members
at 9.30am)

(The meeting concluded at 12.40pm)

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Thursday, 8th December, 2016

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 7

I eeds Report author: Angela Brogden
ﬁm Tel: 247 4553

Report of Head of Governance and Scrutiny Support
Report to Scrutiny Board (Environment and Housing)
Date: 8t December 2016

Subject: Scrutiny Inquiry into improving air quality in Leeds — session 2

Are specific electoral Wards affected? [ ] Yes X No
If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s):

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and [ ] Yes X No
integration?

Is the decision eligible for Call-In? [ ] Yes X No
Does the report contain confidential or exempt information? [] Yes X No

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number:
Appendix number:

Summary of main issues

1. The Environment and Housing Scrutiny Board decided to undertake an inquiry this year
into improving air quality in Leeds and agreed the terms of reference for this inquiry at
its September 2016 meeting. In acknowledging the cross-cutting nature of this area of
work, representatives from the City Development and Adult Social Services, Public
Health and NHS Scrutiny Boards were also invited to contribute to this inquiry.

2. The purpose of today’s meeting is to consider evidence in line with session 2 of the
inquiry. In accordance with the agreed terms of reference, this session focuses on
existing and potential mechanisms used to engage the public and various stakeholder
groups on the issue of air quality and potential solutions.

3. In preparation for this session, the Director of Environment and Housing has provided a
report which largely concentrates on the issue of public awareness of the impact of air
quality. However, it is acknowledged that further communications work will also need to
be undertaken in developing specific plans to inform stakeholders of the impact of any
measures that might be introduced and the reasoning behind them.

4. Representatives from across the relevant directorates and also other external
organisations will be attending today’s meeting to contribute to the Board'’s discussion
on this matter.

Recommendation

5. Members are asked to consider the attached report in line with session 2 of its inquiry
into improving air quality in Leeds.

Page 7



Background documents’

6. None used

" The background documents listed in this section are available to download from the Council’s website,
unless they contain confidential or exempt information. The list of background documents does not include
published works.

Page 8



i

I eeds Report author: Helena Darby
Tel: 07891 272621

Report of: Director of Environment and Housing
Report to: Environment and Housing Scrutiny Board
Date: 8t December 2016

Subject: Air quality communications update

Are specific electoral Wards affected? [ ] Yes [ ] No
Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and [ ] Yes [ ] No
integration?

Is the decision eligible for Call-In? [ ] Yes X No
Does the report contain confidential or exempt information? [] Yes X No

Summary of main issues

1. Air pollution is now accepted as one of the greatest public health issues in the UK,
attributable to around 40,000 premature deaths each year. However, current public
awareness of air pollution is low compared with those of other public health issues, for
example smoking or obesity. To improve the quality of life of Leeds’ residents, whilst
improving air quality, public awareness needs to be improved so that individuals are
empowered to make decisions to alleviate their exposure to emissions, and reduce

their own contribution to these emissions.

2. In order to encourage this behaviour change, the potential health issues resulting from
exposure to elevated levels of air pollution must be communicated to members of the
public through consulting and engaging with stakeholders, partnership work and

through events and activities across the city.
Recommendations:

3. That the information supplied in this report is noted and discussed.

Page 9




1.1

2.2

2.3

3.2

Purpose of this report

This report informs Scrutiny Board of the progress being made in informing and
communicating the issue of air pollution to the residents, businesses and schools
(parents and children) of Leeds

Background information

Air pollution originates from a range of sources. Natural background air pollution
derives from animals or events such as storms and volcanic movements.
However, the bulk of emissions come from man-made sources. Power stations
and industry are major contributors, but a significant emission source is our road
networks that contribute to regional background air pollution and specific local hot
spots.

Urban air pollution typically increases incrementally as traffic flow and volume
increases; this can lead to particular areas of concern — which in Leeds have been
defined as Air Quality Management Areas (AQMASs). Improvements in air quality
can largely only be delivered through reducing the emissions from vehicles, or
reducing the number of vehicles on the roads.

To improve the quality of air in Leeds, a modal shift to sustainable forms of
transport is vital. This means encouraging stakeholders to switch from jumping in
the car each time they travel, to using public transport or active transport such as
cycling, running or walking. In terms of business, this means encouraging fleet
change to lower emissions vehicles, and consolidation practices to reduce the
number of delivery vehicles on our roads.

Current engagement initiatives

To achieve this behaviour change, our communications strategy has 4
overarching themes:

e Raising awareness and sharing information
e Consultation and engagement activity

e Promoting active partnerships

e Organising events and activities

Raising awareness and sharing information

The Council website has been updated with air quality information for businesses
and residents. This includes information on the Council’s progress in this area
(such as converting 70 fleet vehicles to zero emissions or ultra-low emissions
vehicles; opening the Cycle Superhighway to encourage cycling between Leeds
and Bradford; and introducing a Park and Ride at Elland Road), as well as
signposting businesses to register their interest in our air quality pledges, and an
informative ‘did you know?’ myth busting section on the residents’ pages.

Page 10



3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

The second phase of website development will incorporate the introduction of a
more detailed and informative air quality section within the Council’s website. This
would act as an information hub, including signposting to other relevant
webpages. Examples of the kind of information that would be included are:

e Background information on the sources and types of pollutants.

e Health impacts of poor air quality with links to Public Health and NHS advice,
and health charities such as Asthma UK and the British Lung Foundation.

e Advice for members of the public to avoid personal exposure to air pollution,
including factual information from recent studies e.g. ‘you are actually
exposed to more emissions whilst sat in your car in busy traffic than walking
or cycling alongside’.

e Guidance on how members of the public can reduce their own personal
contribution to air pollution, including links to sustainable travel, cycle2work
schemes, walk to work buddy schemes and government low emissions
vehicle grants.

e Location of AQMAs and links to the Council’'s and DEFRA’s air quality
monitoring websites.

¢ Information packs and activity ideas for schools.

Work is being undertaken to develop an integrated campaign, which will help to
get our story into the media through a range of articles showcasing case studies
from our business pledges. It will also seek to raise awareness of the public health
issues associated with poor air quality. There is current work being done to
develop the branding and visual identity, which will be market tested with a range
of target audiences from our 3 stakeholder groups (residents, businesses and
schools). This is expected to be approved by the end of December.

The aim is to share information with anyone who drives a vehicle on our roads.
The best ways to reach this group are through advertisements on the sides and
rears of buses, variable signage on roads, billboards at main junctions, news
articles, and online advertising via channels such as our own website and social
media accounts. These opportunities will ensure appropriate and effective
messages are affirmed.

To ensure our messages reach as wide an audience as possible, sharing
information online through social media is critical. The process to create a brand
and strapline for our campaign has started. This includes setting up a Twitter and
Facebook account to raise awareness of current air pollution levels, promote our
pledges, and link to other information sources such as the British Lung
Foundation and Enterprise Leeds car club. This will develop the ‘clean air
conversation’ and will give traction to future initiatives that develop from these
foundations.

There is a need to ensure that the impact on public health caused by Air Quality is
understood across the city in order for the measures that need to be taken to

Page 11



3.8

3.9

3.10

3.11

3.12

3.13

reduce emissions are supported. The requirement to comply with the
government’s plans to introduce a Clean Air Zone will require fleet owners across
the city to be aware of how to comply with schemes to reduce emissions. The
communications plan will need to ensure that any schemes are clearly articulated
to all key stakeholders.

Consultation and engagement activity

Stakeholders have been identified under 3 categories: businesses, residents and
schools (parents and children). The approach to communications will be tailored
to these groups individually, with an overarching ambition of raising awareness
and instigating behaviour change towards more sustainable transport modes.

A city-wide transport survey ‘Leeds Transport Conversation’ ended on the 11t of
November. This comprised of questions relating air quality to transport. The
responses to this are now being analysed, and we will use this to inform our work:
understanding the views of Leeds’ residents and businesses and allowing us to
focus our air quality communications with target audiences in mind.

A DEFRA consultation is being hosted in Leeds on their proposals for a
framework for National Clean Air Zones on the 29" of November. This will be split
into two parts, with an event for Local Authorities followed by one for local
stakeholders (including taxi/private hire firms, local fleet managers, emergency
services, etc.), enabling people to learn more about the proposal and put their
questions to government policy teams. This will ensure that businesses in Leeds
are engaged in the consultation process and have the chance to express their
views and concerns prior to these plans being adopted.

In order to change transport behaviour amongst fleet operators, we have
appointed a consultant to engage with individual businesses. We will raise
awareness of air quality issues, offer them advice and information about the
proposed Clean Air Zone and how it might affect them, and suggest ways they
can reduce their contribution to emissions through a range of different actions
(including signposting to the types of subsidies that may be available to them,
such as the Workplace Electric Charge Point grant scheme announced by central
government).

Not all businesses will be reached through this engagement work, so meetings
will be facilitated between fleet managers of larger companies and those of Small
and Medium Enterprises (SMEs) to share information on how they have reduced
their emissions. This would include case studies from those who have signed our
pledges and made changes to their behaviour, and information on the ECO Stars
scheme.

A key objective for 2017 is to make air quality data useful and accessible.
Consultations with the Data Mill and Open Data Institute (ODI) on the
development of an air quality mobile app to forecast pollution levels, find low air
pollution routes, and send targeted messages to vulnerable groups will be part of
this work. Engagement with NHS and Public Health to consider other ways to
utilise this data will be considered.

Page 12



3.14

3.15

3.16

3.17

3.18

Promoting active partnerships

As part of our business engagement work, businesses will be encouraged to
become ‘Champions’ for cleaner air in Leeds by agreeing to a range of actions
they can take to reduce air pollution under four key themes: policy and
communications, corporate buildings, transport and fleet, and supply chains.
These commitments will include:

e Highlighting the health impact of poor air quality to employees through air
quality awareness workshops;

e Embedding air quality improvements into corporate responsibility and
environmental policies;

e Promoting walking and cycling as the best option for employee commutes;

e Reducing the number of vehicles delivering to the office through consolidation
and sharing office basics with neighbouring businesses;

e Signing up to the ECO Stars fleet recognition scheme.

Pledges will be promoted and publicised through newsletter articles to fleet
operators and via the information on the Council’s business webpage.

ECO Stars is a national fleet recognition scheme that aims to help fleet operators
improve efficiency, reduce fuel consumption and emissions, and make cost
savings. The Council’'s work with this scheme has improved and made cost
savings to our own fleet resulting in our rating as a 3-star authority. We want to
encourage businesses to review their own arrangements by partnering with ECO
Stars to generate cost savings and emission reductions.

Partnership with other bodies, such as the West Yorkshire Combined Authority,
will ensure the continued promotion of low emission travel choices

Schools are one of our three identified stakeholders. Much can be achieved in
terms of educating children and encouraging them to ask their parents to make
the right choices for their commute to school. During the first week of November a
‘Green Week’ with a focus on Air Quality was held at a primary school in
Headingley. This was a success and further partnership work with Schools will be
developed to encourage walking/cycling to school, a ban on engine idling near
schools, and various other educational and awareness raising activities.

Organising events and activities

3.19

3.20

Attendance at various ECO Stars events in the city have highlighted how this free
scheme can be promoted to businesses in Leeds, and will be an ongoing part of
the air quality project.

An event is being planned for 2017 to showcase fleet opportunities to support the
adoption of cleaner and low emission vehicles. Manufacturers, fuel infrastructure
suppliers, advisory bodies and fleet operators will be invited to attend. This event

Page 13



3.21

3.22

4

will be used to celebrate the progress of our Air Quality Champions and
improvements resulting from our pledges, and will also be an opportunity to
promote our pledges to other fleet operators. This will support the reduction of
fleet emissions across city and regional fleets.

Sustainable travel was an important part of the week of events at the primary
school in Headingley. Training on ‘cycling confidence’ and ‘practical road safety
training’ were some of the activities held. Year 4 students visited the air quality
monitoring station on Otley Road, and the year 6 students used an air quality
monitor to assess pollution levels at school. Councillor Yeadon made a visit to the
school in support of this work. The week was a success and the school are now
looking into the feasibility of a walking bus and/or park and stride scheme to
improve their local air quality. These activities can be replicated at future events
with schools.

A ‘data hack’ event will be held in Spring 2017. This will be a two stage process:
firstly establishing which businesses, public sector organisations and community
groups feel they need better air quality data; and secondly inviting them to the
event to understand how we can make this data meaningful for them. This will
determine how we share air quality data and make it usable. It will support the
delivery of change in these organisations processes, practices and decision
making. This will be in collaboration with the ODI.

Other opportunities

DEFRA and DFfT grant opportunity

4.1

4.2

A national air quality grant fund has been launched with a total value of £3 million.
The fund is split into 2 lots:

e Lot 1 ‘Delivering results’ — programmes that deliver air quality benefits in the
next 1-2 years;

e Lot 2 ‘Taking the lead’ — programmes developing the evidence base for
measures that could deliver widespread benefit in the future.

The Council have submitted individual and consortium bids for each lot.

National air quality campaign

4.3

4.4

As part of our bids for lot 1 of the DEFRA grant, Leeds is part of a joint bid for a
national air quality campaign submitted by Southampton on behalf of the cities
group; with local engagement in 6 cities including Birmingham, Derby, Manchester
and Nottingham. Global Action Plan (GAP) have provided a provided the
framework for this, which would launch with a National Clean Air Day on the 15th
of June 2017.

There are 3 keys outcomes for this national campaign:

e Visible action on the ground involving the public on ‘National Clean Air Day’,
including school challenges and no-idling intervention;

Page 14



4.5

e A wide reach through high profile communication of health messages through
local media;

e Alegacy of greater capability for local health professionals and community
leaders to address air quality, and continued community action on air pollution
year-round.

The above aligns with DEFRA’s CAZ framework which recommends that
campaigns focus on health benefits. It will ensure that good advice is provided by
health experts and academics, which then reaches Leeds’ residents. This will be
achieved through targeted messaging aimed at protecting health to overturn the
current situation, where there is a resource gap in the funding available to city
authorities and local NHS trusts to spread awareness.

Taxi Scrappage Scheme

4.6

5.1
5.1.1
5.1.2
5.2
5.2.1

5.2.2

5.2.3

An additional bid has been submitted by Leeds in LOT 1 for funding to support a
pilot scrappage scheme that will support the early take up of Ultra Low Emission
vehicles (ULEVSs) in place of older diesel vehicles across the taxi and private hire
trade. If successful this bid will support the purchase of electric and plug in hybrid
vehicles in this sector to demonstrate the benefits of these vehicles and raise
awareness in the trade and publically of the feasibility of alternative fuel vehicles,
Communications activity will be delivered as part of this scheme, with the benefits
of ULEVs being measured and case studies developed to encourage the adoption
of these vehicles across fleets.

Corporate Considerations

Consultation and Engagement

An annual report on air quality in the city is taken to Executive Board.
This report forms part of the consultation on air quality communications.
Equality and Diversity / Cohesion and Integration

There is now categorical evidence that long-term exposure to everyday air
pollutants contributes to a wide range of health effects, such as: respiratory
diseases including asthma and declines in lung function; cardiovascular diseases
including strokes; adverse pregnancy outcomes such as preterm birth; and
premature deaths.

Air pollution is harmful to everyone. However, some people are more susceptible
than others because of the location in which they live and work, their age, or
existing medical conditions.

Deprived areas in cities typically experience heavier than average traffic
movements and consequently, potentially higher levels of pollution as well. When
combined, air pollution, deprivation and poor health status can create increased
and disproportionate disease burdens.

Page 15



524

5.2.5

5.2.6
5.3
5.3.1

5.3.2

54

5.4.1

54.2

54.3

5.5

5.5.1

5.6
5.6.1

The groups most vulnerable to the adverse effects of air pollution are young
children with developing lungs, the elderly, and those with pre-existing health
conditions.

Communicating the risks associated with high exposure to air pollution, and
ensuring vulnerable groups are aware of ways in which they can reduce their
individual exposure to air pollution, are vital in order to reducing these health
inequalities.

Air quality is one element that contributes to the Index of Multiple Deprivation.
Council policies and Best Council Plan

Raising awareness of the impacts of air pollution to residents, businesses and
schools contributes to the Council’s cutting carbon and improving air quality
breakthrough project. Improving air quality is one of the 2016/17 priorities and
cannot be achieved without positive action and a whole city approach.

There is a need to reduce air pollution-related risks for all in Leeds. To improve
health and wellbeing and reduce health inequalities across communities, the
adverse health effects of poor air quality and advice to reduce exposure to
emissions must be communicated to members of the public. This particularly
applies to those in vulnerable groups or living in AQMAs.

Resources and value for money

The £5,000 cost of appointing an agency to develop a brand for the Air Quality
campaign is being met from within existing DEFRA funding for this purpose.

The Council has also received funding from DEFRA to support the work with
CrispAir consultant.

If the DEFRA/DfT bid for the national air quality campaign is secured, Leeds will
receive £50,000 funding towards communications activities in the city. This will be
used for: bus and radio adverts targeting car drivers; developing materials that
can be rolled out across schools to encourage behaviour change and educate
children; supporting additional local events up to the national clean air day 2017
event; and developing business materials to assist with investment decisions on
alternative fuels and low emissions transport modes.

Legal Implications, Access to Information and Call In

The Council has a statutory duty to reduce air pollution in the city in order to
comply with legislative targets set by EU law adopted into legislation.

Risk Management

Failing to raise public awareness of the risks of poor air quality to health, and
providing guidance about what the public can do to help reduce emissions, could
result in criticism of the Council from central government, local residents and
activist groups.

Page 16



5.6.2

5.6.3

6.1

7.1

Until residents, businesses and schools are aware of both the issues and the
steps they can take to reduce their exposure, primarily through a modal shift to
sustainable transport; the figures for premature deaths and health complications
caused by pollution are unlikely to improve and could well continue to rise.
Businesses also need to be made aware of DEFRA’s plans for a Clean Air Zone
in Leeds so that they can plan for the impact on their business.

In order for Leeds to achieve compliance with air quality standards which have
been incorporated into national legislation by 2020, significant changes must be
made to the way we travel around the city. Failure to comply with these EU
targets would mean that the Council could face infraction fines imposed by the
Government through the Localism Act. Consequently air quality is included on the
Corporate Risk Register and is reviewed by CLT four times a year.

Recommendations

To note the work undertaken this year on air quality communications and the
timetable for progression of the local campaign into 2017.

Background documents'

None.

" The background documents listed in this section are available to download from the Council’'s website,
unless they contain confidential or exempt information. The list of background documents does not include
published works.

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 8

Report author: A Brogden
Tel: 24 74553

- CI1TY COUNCIL

Report of the Head of Governance and Scrutiny Support
Report to Scrutiny Board (Environment and Housing)
Date: 8" December 2016

Subject: Peckfield Landfill Site Update

Are specific electoral Wards affected? [ ] Yes X] No

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s):

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and [ ] Yes X No
integration?

Is the decision eligible for Call-In? [ ] Yes < No
Does the report contain confidential or exempt information? [ ] Yes X No

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number:

Appendix number:

1.0 Purpose of this report

1.1  This report sets out the response of the Environment Agency to the issues and
requests for additional information made by the Scrutiny Board during its September
2016 meeting in relation to Peckfield Landfill Site. The Scrutiny Board will also
receive a general update from the Council’'s Minerals & Waste Planning Team during
today’s meeting.

2.0 Background information

2.1 In September 2014, the former Safer and Stronger Communities Scrutiny Board
responded to a pubic request for Scrutiny in relation to the Peckfield landfill site near
Micklefield. The Board agreed to undertake an inquiry to consider the ongoing issues
linked to the operation of this site and the role of the Council and the Environment
Agency in this regard. This inquiry concluded in March 2015 and a report setting out
the Scrutiny Board’s findings and recommendations was published April 2015. This
report is available via the Council’s website (click here for inquiry report).

2.3 It now falls within the remit of the Environment and Housing Scrutiny Board to monitor
the implementation of the recommendations arising from this inquiry. As such, the
Scrutiny Board has continued to track progress since November 2015, with the latest
tracking report being considered at its September 2016 meeting. However, as well
as tracking progress with the Scrutiny recommendations, the Environment and
Housing Scrutiny Board has also considered more broadly the respective roles of the
Council and the Environment Agency in relation to the general management of landfill
sites. In doing so, the Board has focused on 3 key areas of interest:

Page 19


http://democracy.leeds.gov.uk/documents/s138725/item%207%20-%20appendix%201%20-%20Peckfield%20Final%20Inquiry%20for%20April%20Board.pdf

2.4

3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

4.0

4.1

5.0
5.1

» Communications with local residents in relation to the management of the site;
» Restoration and Aftercare planning;
» Contingency planning in the event of a landfill operator going out of business.

During its September 2016 meeting, the Scrutiny Board raised a number of issues
linked to how well the landfill site is being managed in accordance with the operating
permit regulated by the Environment Agency. As such, the Scrutiny Board expressed
its disappointment not to have an Environment Agency representative present at its
meeting. Board Members therefore requested that the Chair writes to the
Environment Agency setting out the Board’s issues and requests for additional
information.

Main issues

The Chair of the Scrutiny Board wrote to the Area Environment Manager (West
Yorkshire) at the Environment Agency on 27" October 2016. Within this letter, the
following requests for information were made to the Environment Agency:

e Further detail of the number and type of operating permit breaches that have taken
place at Peckfield Landfill Site whilst the management of Caird Peckfield Ltd and
what enforcement action has been made by the Environment Agency in
responding to recent odour and littering complaints;

e A clear explanation why the details surrounding associated financial provisions
held by the Environment Agency in relation to the site have not or cannot be
shared with the Council;

e An update following the fire incident at the site which commenced on Saturday 8"
October 2016, including an explanation of what started the fire; what measures
should have been in place by the operator to prevent its occurrence; and what
action the Environment Agency is taking with the operator following this incident.

A response to the Chair’s letter was provided by the Environment Agency on 24"
November 2016 and this has been appended for the Board’s information.

As well as considering the response of the Environment Agency, the Scrutiny Board
will also be receiving a further update during today’s meeting from representatives of
the Council’s Minerals & Waste Planning Team.

Recommendations

Members are asked to:

e Consider the attached response of the Environment Agency to the issues and
requests for additional information made by the Scrutiny Board during its
September 2016 meeting.

e Consider the progress update provided by the Council’'s Minerals & Waste
Planning Team.

e Determine the Scrutiny Board’s next steps in relation to this matter.

Background documents?
None.

1

The background documents listed in this section are available to download from the Council’s website,

unless they contain confidential or exempt information. The list of background documents does not include
published works.

Page 20



Environment
W Agency

Councillor John Proctor

Chair of Environment & Housing Scrutiny Board

Conservative Group Office ‘

2" Floor East

Civic Hall Date: 24 November 2016
Leeds

LS1 1UR

Dear John,
Thankyou for your letter of 271" October 2016.

In your correspondence to us you express your disappointment that the
Environment Agency did not attend the Scrutiny Board meeting in September.

Whilst we recognise the value and importance of Scrutiny Boards we can no
longer commit our limited resources to always attend in person. During 2015
we dedicated at significant amount of resource in support of the board and
whilst we cannot continue to commit the same level of resource, we do
welcome the opportunity to provide written updates and to answer any further
questions by correspondence. We will continue to work closely with Leeds
City Council's Minerals & Waste Planning team, as well as communicating
with the local community via the Community Liaison meetings we attend.

| recognise that this is not the response you are seeking. | therefore
welcomed the opportunity to meet and discuss the issues in play and explain
the basis of our approach in more detail on the 24 November 2016. | very
much hope that following our meeting you are better informed and able to
extend our explanation to all Scrutiny Board members.

| note your role as Chair of the Scrutiny Board will be coming to and end, and
a new chair is to be appointed. | would be happy to meet with the new chair
will ask my office to arrange a meeting once your replacement is announced.

With regards to the specific issues raised within your letter. Please find
attached to this letter a report of the permit breaches that have been recorded
at Peckfield Landfill Site whilst under the management of Caird Peckfield Ltd
(CPL).

We investigated Caird Peckfield Ltd in relation to permit breaches that
occurred in 2012 and 2013. As an enforcement response we provided advice
and guidance to the company and issued an enforcement notice requiring the
company to comply with the terms of its permit.

Environment Agency, Crosskill House, Mill Lane, Beverley, HU17 9JW
Customer Services Line: 08708 506 506

Email: enquiries@environment-agency.gov.uk

www.gov.uk

Page 21



We also brought a prosecution in the Magistrate’s Court against the company
for a permit contravention during the same period. The Code for Crown
Prosecutors places us under a statutory obligation to continuously keep under
review any decision to commence a prosecution. The prosecution was
withdrawn after conducting one such review for reasons that are legally
privileged.

With regards to more recent permit brea(ﬁhes the Environment Agency have
issued Warning Letters as detailed in the attached report.

| am sorry that you feel that you have not had a clear explanation from the
Environment Agency as to why Caird Peckfield’s financial provision cannot be
shared with the council. We previously informed the Scrutiny Board at the
meeting in December 2015 that financial provision is subject to commercial
confidentiality. This is in compliance with Regulation 48(1) of the
Environmental Permitting Regulations 2010 which requires the Environment
Agency to exclude information from the public register if it-

e considers that the information may be confidential information; or
e receives notice from the information subject which —
o states that the information subject considers the information is
confidential information, and
o gives reasons for that view.

As we have mentioned previously, financial provision is a mechanism to
ensure that adequate aftercare provision can be put in place in the event of an
operator abandoning a site. Financial provision is there to cover the cost of
closure and aftercare, it does not provide provision for full restoration of the
site as detailed in any planning permission.

With respect to the fire incidents at the Peckfield Landfill site on Saturday 8t
October and Monday 24" October 2016. A fire investigation is underway to
try to establish the cause of the fires. West Yorkshire Fire Service are
supporting in that investigation. The report will be made available once the
investigation is complete.

Prior to completion of the investigation we have asked Caird Peckfield to
review and update their fire incident operational procedures and review their
site security.

| hope that this is helpful and that you will be able to meet with me in the near
future. Please contact me again if | can be of further assistance.

Yours sincerely

i
C 2 x SO S ._,j

Victoria Slingsby
Area Environment Manager — West Yorkshire

Page 2 of 18
Page 22



Mr6 LINH ‘Aepianag

N AoB M

yn°AoB-Aousbe-juawuosaua@sauinbus (jlewsy
908G 906G 80480 -8UIT s8JIMBS JBWosSny

‘QuUET |IIN ‘@SNOH [INssou) ‘Aouaby Juswuoliaug

St:ST 9IS UO 315BM
Buluiem | €10Z/£0/10 | S1eudosddeus jo a3el01s € nwuad Ag payads Te TTC HI9z/6Nnd 7SE66T
0€:0T ‘[l4puel swalsAs Juawaseuew
Sujulem | €T0Z/L0/L0 | e uo JaA0d s3enbapeuy € | -luswsSeuep |esauan 72 )Tt HI9Z/6N4 €GE66T
0S:0T wawdinba pue awdinba pue
Sulwiem | €T0Z/L0/L0 jue|d woudy |10 Jo Sy ea] € jue|d-ainlonuisesyu; gq ‘e)rrt Higz/end €QE66T
91IS @2y woJd}
2dedsa unopo 1uanaud
00:7T 03 uay e} 8uiaq Jou
uonndasold | €T0Z/S0/TE | sanseaw areudosddy 4 inopo-Ayuswy T4 Tee HI9ZZ6N49 T¥€66T
Ajo1enidoidde pageuew
TT:TT | Suiaqg 10U |RlI3)BW JSA0D SwI21sAs Juswa8euew
uonnaasold | €10Z/90/¥T / suoneiado Suiddi| € | -luswaseuel |es3usn 2 e)rre HI9Z/6Nng LLE86T
00:vT ‘Puaaam B I3A0 1SEM Swa1sAs Juswaseuew
UOIY J3YUNJ ON | €T0Z/90/60 ||e J9A02 03 Suljie4 € | -luswaseue |es3uan 72 e)rre HI9Z/6N9 €/8161
91IS ay1 wouy
adedsa Jnopo juanaid
00:ZT 01 uael Suiaq 10U )
uonnaasold | €10Z/¥0/0€ |  Ssainseaw alendosddy z Jnopo-Ajuswy Ty Tee HI9Z/6Ng EVELBT
00:€T SWIeaJls 91sem ulenad 2oueldadoe sjela1ew
Suluiep | €T0Z/S0/0T ~ 10} 5|ie39p DYM ON € | -luswageuey |e1auan €2 TLe HI9Z/6Ng 78TL61
uoiy uonediisse|d uonipuo) JaquinN JagquinN
juawadiojug awil/aleq Joj uoseay uonesiyisse|y | 2oueijdwo) uop jo adAy Hwad Hwiad p1023y

3US |ypue] pjaydd - 3US
PauWIT PjaLIad PAIeD - JIP|OH Huiiad

HI9ZL6N4 - JAaqINN JuiIdd

€102/10/£2 - (1o1v) a1eqg
SuoRIpuo) 43314

3115 |[IJPUET p|aIpIad 10} 0day aWayds UOIEISSE]) adue|jdwio)

V

Aouadvy
JUOWIUOITAU

Page 23



8l Jo { abeyd

uoI1Ndasold

9G:TT
€T0Z/L0/LT

"UMOU3UN JUIAS JO
uoneing ‘ialempunoss
01 Ajjuanbasqns pue
91s 8yl Jo Med pauljun
01u0 Aj303.1p adedss
21eydea)| 01 Suipes|

[|2M UOIIDBIIXD 23BYIER])
uo aunjie; dwng

SIWS JO
"JuaAaid 10} Suliaauidua
-ainjonJiselu| Tq

‘¢

TTE

HI9Z/6N9

¢9¢00¢

uoINJaso.d

9S:TT
€10Z/40/LT

"S1921140
w3 Aqg a11s uo wajqoud
241 JO uoneaynuapl
3y3 Buimoj|o}

10 01 soud Jayua

V3 9y1 Aq paaisdal jou
adeasa a1eyoes)| ay3 10}
UOI1EIYIION § 3|NPayIs

Aouasy
01 "udyirou pue Suniodals
-5p4029Yy I UOA 18

‘e)rey

HIg9Zi6Ndg

€9200¢

uoIINI3S0.d

9S:1T
€102/L0/LT

*9|geidaddeun

alam punoud

01 8u108 paniasqo
a1eydes)| jo adeasa pue
[9A3] 3YL "9YS UO d19M
5420140 AduaBy a104aq
Suo| wajqoud siyy
payiuspl sAey pjnom
ainjonuiselyul aleydes|
Jo suoidadsul auinoy

swalsAs Juswadeuew
-luswasgeuey |BIBUSD 72

‘e)rre

HIgZ/6Ndg

29¢00¢

uoIlnldasold

00:Z1T
€10Z/90/0¢

IS
ay1 wouy adedasa unopo

1uaA3.d 01 uaye] 10U
sainseaw 3leldosddy

Jnopo-Ajuswy T}

TEE

HigZ/end

€09661

Page 24



gl Jo g abed

€T/L/TT panuss
9J110u se papuadsns

24025 "syea.qino

SIW 4O

00:00 10514 01 Suipes)| "Juanaud Joy SuliaauiSua
uoidYy Jsyunj oN | €T0Z/90/0€ speay a1eyoes| ysiH -alnjonJiselu| Tq ‘T'8C HI9ZZ6Nd ¢6510¢
*92.0}
ul 92110u se papuadsng
"3JN1onJiseljul |043U0d
uonnjjod A3y 1921014d
STTIT Aje1enbape 01 aunjie} swalsAs Juawadeuew
UOIJOY J3YLN] ON | €T0Z/80/ZT | O3 anp adedss a1eyoea -Juswageuey |esauan go (e)rTT HI9Z/6N4 165102
*Ajnr ul pansas
92110U 1UBWIIIIOLUD
9¢ uonenday
Hd3 yum aouedwod
Buipuad papuadsns
00:00 | 94025 "UOI}PUOD UINOPO
uonndesold | €T0Z/L0/1€ 40 yoeauq 3ul03uQ Jnopo-Ajuswy T4 TEE HI9ZL6Nd 15200¢
AduaBy
00:0T SINOPO 2US-}J0 01 "udynou pue Suiliodal
uonndasold | €10Z/L0/T€ 3o sn Ajnou 03 aunjre4 -5p1023Yy g UON 8 (e)rey HI9zZ6N4g 9€900Z
"92404
ul @2110U se papuadsng
‘aw} a1eudoudde SIw? Jo
00:0T ul joJlu03 se3 01 / ‘Juanaud Joj SuuasuiSua
uonndasold | €T0Z/L0/TE | (192 193Uu0d4 0} aunjie4 -aJnonJisesju] Iq (e)rTT HI9ZZ6N4g 9€900¢
"92.0} Ul 3J130U Se
00:60 papuadsns “Aep jo pua swalsAs JuswaSeuew
uoinissold | €10Z/L0/8¢ 1e 3)is JaA02 03 Suj|ie4 -juswaseueA |e13usn 72 )T HI9Z/6N8 S€9002

Page 25



8l 10 g abed

215eMm jueljdwod uou Jo
|esodsip pue asueidadde
ul uiynsas saunpaosoud
uoidafas pue

I€:Z7T uoI1123dsul 31SEM |BNSIA SWa1sSAs Jusawaseuew
Sulutem | €102/60/L2 01 aJaype 0} a.n|ied -Juswageue| |elauan zd TLre HI9Z/6N4d 1SS€0T
saunpadoud uodadsul
215EM 0} 22UdJiaype
Jood ‘s|enalew
12T JIA0D Ul JUIIUOD 2oueldanoe sjelalew
Buluiep | €10Z/60/LT Jo3sejd /wnsdA3 ysiy -Judwadeuep |eJaUdD €2 T Hi9z/6N49 1SS€0T
wa3sAs Juswa8euew
ul pajeis se adey
0E:1T Suiddiy a3sem uo Janod SwalsAs Juawaseuew
Sulurem | €T0Z/60/TT anIssa80ud Suisn JoN -Juswaseue|y |esauan 72 ‘)T HI9ZL6Ng 9€520T
. oVt 94701 8°np
uonndasold | €TOZ/80/TE | Yoealiq anopo SujoduQ Jnopo-Ajuswy T4 T'EE HI9Z/6N49 000202
se3 Jo Sunuaa
0} uipes| 8uliaauiSua SIW? Jo
(0j7237a) luswaSeuew Juanaid Joy SuisaauiSus
uolIN23so.d | £10Z/80/T€ ses Jo e -24njnuisesyu| Tq ‘e)rTT HI9ZZ6N4 000202
sayoeauq [9A3) Adua8y
00:00 4988141 404 SG 3NpayYdS 01 ‘ud1ou pue SupJodal
UoIY JBYHN4 ON | £T0Z/90/0€ Hwigns 03 aJnjie4 -5p1023Y 73 UON ¥8 ‘(e)rey HI9Z/6Ng 765102
“nuuad Aq pasinbai JUSWUOJIAUD
00:00 ejep Suoluow pue suoISSIWD
uondY Jayung oN | €10Z/90/0€ [lB HWgns 01 aJnjiey -Sp1023Y 13 UO\ T8 ‘T'SE HI9ZL6N4g Z6ST0T
elep Sulionuow Ui
00:00 |2A9] 4283141 3Y1 anoge Ja1empunolisd
uoIY Jayungd oN | €10Z/90/0¢ 1e payodal wnjwpe) pue puej-suoissiwg za STE HI9ZLeNng ¢6ST0T

Page 26



gl 1o / abed

‘e0T
192 ul SI3SLI 3)BYIED)

Aduady

0€:60 | X € UO UOI1IRIIXD JO SSO| 0} “udiizou pue uiuodai
Suluiem | €107/0T/zz | Inoge Ajjou 03 aunjied -SpJ023y g UOWN ¥3 (e)rey HI9Z/6N4 ZIEVOT
‘B0T
Pue g6 ‘e s||32 Jo yueyy
91SEM |BUJIIUI pUB BOT
1192 Ul SIS 3)BYIEJ| X € ‘
0€:60 | UO uoldEAIXD 91ENnbape wawdinba pue .
Suiuiem | €T0Z/0T/22 ulejuiew o3 anjieq ue|d-ainoniiseljul gq (e)Tore HI9zZ/6Nd ZTEVOT
*2oe|d
ul sjosluod aenbapeul
0€:60 ‘11 uo spuiq sJa8uaneds/spaiq/sisad
Suluiem | €10Z/01/22 0 Jaquinu pajeAs|3 -Auawy ) ) o B 4 HI9ZZ6N9 48374014
wnsdA3/ia1se|d
PT:CT | 40 S|9A3] ySiy paurejuod adueldadoe sjelaleW .
Buiuiem | €T0Z/0T/80 [BlI31BW J2A0D -ludwadeuely |eJaUdD €2 ‘LT Higzie6Nnd 600102
315em jueljdwod uou jo
|esodsip pue aoueidadoe
ul Suiynsau sainpadoad
uoioafas pue
YT:ZT | uoidadsul aisem |ensia swalsAs Juawafeuew
3uiwiem | €10Z/0T/80 01 ai3ype 0} a.njie] -Judwaseuey |BJBUID 7D TLT HI9z/6N4 600102
2Us
Jo Juawaseuew Jood
00:¢T | "yoeauq T'€'E€ uoIpuod swialsAs Juawaseuew
uonndasold | €T0Z/60/0€ Huwad Jo asned 100y -Juswageue|y |es3uan 72 ‘e)rrT HI9Z/6Ng €09¢€0¢
00:ZT yoeauq uoilipuod
uonndasold | €T0Z/60/0€ dnopo 3ulo3uQ Inopo-Ajuawy Ty TEE HI9Z/6N8 €09€07

Page 27



g8l Jo g abed

Suiuzem
s,Aep snoinaid andsap

GSET ‘|elI91EW JBA0D JO swajsAs JuswaSeuew
uonndasold | €10Z/2T/S0 | uonedldde sjenbapeu) -luswaBeuey |eISUdY 72 e)rTT HI9zZ6N4 €9/907
‘ 211s 9y} jo doy
£Z:60 | @Y1 Uuo JaA0D a1enbapeul 219 8ulpuey ‘a8elo1s
uoindasold | €T0Z/ZT/v0 jo ease d81e -Juswaseue|\ |eI3ul9 2 TTT Hi9z/6Nng T1S/902
00:ZT T'€°€ UOIIPUOD SwalsAs Juawa8euew
uonNdasold | €T0Z/0T/TE | 40 ydealq Jo Isned 100y -JuswaBeuey |eIaUdD 72 (e)rrT Hi9Z/6Nd 29090¢
: anssi
00:ZT Jnopo ses ||ijpue| pue
uonndssold | €T0Z/0T/TE d)sem Suinnos Suiodup Jnopo-Ajuswy T4 TEee HI9z/6N9 790902
qotT (190 ul
pioa Ausenb aya jo aseq
paiasuiduaun/pauljun
ay1 01 Aj3oau1p Sujuunu
pue saueisqwaw o13sed
J0 uo1123s padewep
0€:60 e ysnouyl Suideass Jalempunous
uoninej [ewuod | €TO0Z/TT/ET S ||9) WoJj a1eyoes pue puej-suolssiwg zga ‘TTE HI9z/6Ng 19090¢C
punoud
0€:60 03 8uluunu leyoea| swalsAs Juawageuew
uonne) jewod | €TOZ/TT/ET ay1 Ayiauapt 03 aunjred -juawageuey |es3uan 72 (e)rTT HI9z/6Ng 190907
0T:60 BQT [|92 Ul JAA0D 3oueldadoe sjelalew
8uiulep | €T0Z/TT/L0 | Aep jo pua sjenbapeu -Juawaseue| [eJauaD €2 ‘)T HI9Z/6Ng 964102
*SI9sL [|lemapis
uo sded oy ‘T eaue SIwa Jo
0T:60 | Awsond ul ainyoniisesjul ‘Juanaud Joy SuisauiSua TTe
Sulwiem | €102Z/TT/L0 u01123]]00 seg 0 e -ain1anJIsesyu| Tq ‘ToT'C HI9ZL6Ng 96/%02

Page 28



8l 1o 6 abed

19jinbe 3|dpund uo a1g

SIWS JO

00:00 "22uel|dwod-uou peay Juanaud Joy Suuaauidua
Suluiem | €10zZ/TT/1E 9leyoes| Juedyiusis -a4njonJisequ) Iq ‘T8¢ HI9zL6Ng 1€660T
aulpeap paunads Aduady
- 00:00 Ag uonewuJoyus 110dau 0} "udijijou pue 3ujodal
Sulliep | €TOZ/ZT/TE | |enuue Jwgns 03 aunjie4 -SpJ0J9y g UON 8 iy HigzL6Ng T€660T
*‘Syuswanosduwi Siw Jo
00:€Z 2J4njonJiseljul seg Joy Juanaud 104 Sunaauidua 1'7°¢
uoIPY JaYyund oN | €T0Z/ZT/ET panias Apealje ao110N -2injonJisesu Tq ‘Tore HI9Z/6N9 295/0¢
950|) apInsAauoy
00:€z | uisaiadoud |eruspisal
UoIDY JaYLN4 ON | €T0Z/CT/ET 1e pajou unopo Suouis Jnopo-Ajuawy T4 SEEE HigzieNnd 79S/0¢
uissiw sem JUSWUOIIAUD
00:00 2Wos 1ng panyiwgns pue suoissiwa
uoIdY JayuN4 oN | €T0Z/60/0€ ejep SuloyUoOW -SpJ023Yy 13 UON T3 T9E HI9ZZ6N8 000£0T
siyy ,
uo puadap |jI1m 3wodINo
- €T/L/yT saadxa
92110U SE paJajua
V4N "papuadsns aq [|im
$2402s 219ym Jauenb
1se| sI siyl "yoeaiq
siy1 SuipJe8aJ 92404
ul 130U e se papuadsns .
21026 "S$)ea4gIno SITENT)
00:00 | 03 Buipea| saouepasdxa "JuaAa4d Joj BulsasuiBus
UuonY Jayunj oN | €10Z/60/0¢ pesy a1eyoes -ainlnJiseyu| Tq T8¢ HIgZ/eNnd 000402
sasnoy
GGIET s,9|doad 8uuajua 212 Ja1|/saiqu/isnp
uonnassold | €10Z/ZT/SO adeasa sayy| Jofey -Auswy g} TTE HI9Z/6N4 €9£90¢

Page 29



8l Jo 0L abed

"dINO
panoiddeun jo TT1'¥

pue ue|d suonesadp
J0 gt 01 Auesiuod ‘a1sem
paJanodun jo eaJe

00:¥T 93Je7 "uo13Ipuod JNopo 2Jueldadoe sjeualew
uoiine) |ewuod | ¥TOZ/90/0T | 40 ydeauq JO asned 100y -Juswaseue| |elausn €3 (e)rrT Hig9ziend (4N YANS
‘SUOISSIWD
1uaAaud 01 Japuo siwa jo
OT:TT ul pajeas A|arenbape "JuaAa.d Joj Suisauidua
Suluiep | #T02/S0/80 10U SI3sU 91eydea] -2JnjonJiseyu] 1q TTT HI9zZZ6Nnd €8YSTT
Aduady
00:00 | "SUOI1BJI}II0U G BNP3aYIS 0} "udijizou pue Suipodal
Suluiem | $T0Z/€0/1€ $0 uoissiwgns a1en -SpJ023y 13 UOWN 3 TEY HI9ZL6Ndg YOrSTe
‘patiodau
Jo/pue Ino paliied JUBWIUOUIAUD
00:00 J0U sem Suloyuow pUB SUoISSIW
Suluiem | $T0Z/€0/1€ paJinbai awos -SpJ023yY 13 UO T8 Tse HI9zZZ6Nnd 1740) 204
PEY
pue ga4 ul €MD uo jwi|
00:00 doueldwod uagouiu Ja1empunoJld
Suluiem | $10Z/€0/T€ |BJBlUOWIWE JO Ydoea.g pue pugj-suolissiwg ga STE HI9Z/6N4g vOvSTe
speay SIWS JO
00:00 a1eydes) ueljdwod "Juanaud Joy Suaaauiua
3uluiem | $TOZ/€0/TE -uou Ajpuedyiusis -24Nn1InJisesju| Tq T8¢ Hi9zLeNnd vOovSTe
‘us)elspun jou sem Juswuoldinua
00:00 Suuoyuow pasinbau pue suoIssiwa
Sululem | €10Z/2T/1€ 3y1 JO Junowe adie| v -Sp1023Y 13 UON T8 T'S'E HI9Z/6N8 T€6607

Page 30



8l Jo L] abed

"‘umop SuipuaJsl aq
01 swass ‘quawdojanap

00:00 U ‘D Jarempunous
Suluiep | #T0zZ/90/0¢ uo sayoeauq N-wwy pue puej-suoissiwg g9 STE HI9zZZ6Nd 195¥TT
"Hwi| peay a1eydes| SIW3 JO
00:00 9y3 Jo saydealq ‘Juana.4d o4 Suuasuidua
Suluiem | +¥T0Z/90/0€ wesyusis Sulo8-ug -a4njpnJisesul Iq ‘g HI9Z/6Nd 19S¥2T
SEITHE]
|0J1U0D 0] BInseaw
o1eudoidde |je Sunel
TE€T 10U ‘31Is JJO paldalap
uonndesold | ¥T0Z/80/1¢ $Inopo ses pue asem Inopo-Ajiuawy T4 TEE HigzL6Ng £08¢TT
TEET *qOT [|92 40 Yjuej} U0 juawdinba pue
uonndssold | ¥10Z/80/1¢ uoI1oeIIXD SEF JO yoeT juejd-ainionJisesju) 5q T HI9zZ6N9 £082TT
T€:€1 | "Aj@1enbape soey Suiddn saueldande sjelialew
uonndssold | ¥10Z/80/1¢ J0 9zIs 1jwl| 01 ainjied -juswageuely |eJausn €2 ‘FET Higzi6Ng £08¢TT
‘uoisialadns
- V0D 1noyum pased SIWwa Jo
S0:60 | Bulaq sjio0s suonelolsal Juaaaud 104 Suliaauidua
Suluiem | $10Z/20/62 J0 WWOQE [ely -24n1onJisequ] 1q ‘99'¢ HI9ZZ6Nn4d 09022
‘uaye) 3ujaqg jou
sainseaw ajeudoidde
pue uonnjjod asned
01 Aj9y1| [9A3] 1B UNOpPO
00:%T 91S-JO °"UOoI}Ipuod
uonnej [euwlod | ¥102/90/0T 4nopo jo yoeaig inopo-Ajuswy T4 T'EE Higz/6Ndg [45TAY4

Page 31



8l J0 gL 9bed

SIWa }o
00:00 S|9A3) "JuanaJd 1oy SuliaauiSus
suluiep | ¥102/60/0€ Sleydes| Jo yoeaig -24njonJiselyu| Tq T8¢ Hi9zLeNd 0£86¢¢C
saoens
paddeoun uo padded
00:00 410q UO SUOISSIWD
Suluiem | ¥10z/60/0€ 20BINS JO Yoealg JIe-suolssiwg 19 LTE Hi9zZ6Ndg 0€86¢C¢C
7MD
00:00 | ul S|2A3] 428811 uaSoaiu Jarempunosd
Buluiem | $T0Z/60/0€ [eJeluowiwe Jo yoealg pue puej-suoissiwg za ST'E HI9zZ6Ndg 0€86C¢C
OTWNd pue
00:00 | 3snp pausodap y1oq Joy} 219 49111l /s24q14/1SNp
Sulutep | ¥T0Z/60/0€ | SI9A3| 1388143 Jo yoeaug -Auswy g} 8TE HI9Z/6N4 0€8677
Sayoeaiq peay aleyoies)
3y1 10} pajuwiqgns Aouady
00:00 10U suonedlyiou 0} "udiyou pue Suiniodau
Suluiem | ¥10Z/60/0€ S 9INPayIs Jo Jaquunn -SpJ023Y 13 UOIA 73 TEY HI9ZZe6Ng 0€86¢C
0Z:0T 1YSiuJaA0 asiou
Sulwiep | STOZ/TO/PT 40 sjuapdul payoday asiou-Ajuawy zj TYE HI9Z/6N9 19¥6T¢
g ‘uonedilou g AduaBy
00:00 | 3npayds e eia paliodad 01 "udlyilou pue Suiliodals
SuluieM | ¥T0Z/90/0€ | 10U saydeaiq AT3 awos -Sp10J3Y @ UOA 8 TEY HI9Z/6N4g 19S¥ZZ
‘8uioyuow JUDWUOJIAUD
00:00 Suissiw Jo Junowe pue suoIssIWa
Suluiepy | £T02/90/0€ [lews AjaAnejal v -SpJ02aY R} UOIN T8 TSE Hi9zzeNd T9S¥ZT
*8uiind0o Ajjenuinuod
10U ‘saydealq Juedjiudis
10N “1snp pausodap
00:00 | 4o} Hwi| Aep/zw/3w0z 213 41| /s34y /3snp
Suluiep | $102/90/0€ J0 sayoeaig -Aiuswy g4 8TE HI9ZLZ6N4d 19S¥2C

Page 32



gL jo gl obed

‘eaJe
Ajuo oSt |euoniesado uo Janod 2oueldaooe sjelalew
9dUBPIND /32IAPY | STOZ/L0/90 dnIssaidoud o yoe -Juswaseuely |e1suan g2 TTE HI9zZZ6Nn49 9T/L8ET
Adualy
Ajuo 00:00 0} udiizou pue Suiuodal
S0UepIND/30IApY | ST0Z/S0/TO suinial a1sem a1e7 -SpJ023yY @ UOIN 3 6TV HI9zL6Nnd 969L€¢C
T'G°€ uonipuo)
yum aui| ui sed
[114pue) Jo Suiojuow
0} aJnjie4 "yMD
00:00 1 €MD ul suwi| 42881} J21empunossd
3ulutem | ¥TOZ/TT/TE | 491BMPUNOIS JO YoraIg pue pue|-suoIssiwg g3 | ‘T'S'EST'E HigzseNnd TZ8VeT
SIWa Jo
00:00 suwi| speay “Juanaud oy SuiaauiBua
Sulwiem | y10Z/TT/1€ 9)eydes| jo yoeaug -aJnynJisesul Iq T8 HI9Z/6Nd TZ8YET
“2inpasoud
131EMpUNOID) S?3US
Syl pue O'€'¢ J3d
ainpadoud Suioliuow
pue Juswsageuew .
Ja1empunous
UYHM dueplodde
ul Sunioyuow JUBWIUOIIAUR
00:0T J91empunoJd pue suoISSIWd
SuluieM | ST0Z/20/92 euapun o1 Suljied -SpJ0d3y 3 UO T8 TET HI9Z/6N4 79STET
‘uolssiwgns 1UBWIUOIIAUD
00:00 ay1 ulyum eyep pue suoIssIWD
Suluiem | ¥T0Z/60/0€ | Buissiw jo Junowe jjews -Sp10J3Yy g UO T8 ‘T'SE HI9ZL6Ng 0€862¢

Page 33



8l Jo ¥ sbed

2J4n1onJlIseuul ||

S1:0T J0 uoidadsul auinod Swia3sAs uawadeuew
Suluiep | STOZ/TT/ET 1o Alied 0} aunjied -Juswaseue| [eIBUdD 72 (e)TTT HI9zZ/6NE T68EVC
yoeauq ses ||pue] Jo} Aouasdy
00:00 | UOnIEIIIOU S 3NPAYIS 0} "udiji1ou pue 3uiiodal
Suluwiem | §T0Z/90/0€ Hwaqns 031 aJnjiey -SpJ029y g UOIN 8 TEY HI9Z/6N4 898TT
= Ny Siws Jo
00:00 Jlaw §'T palywiad Juanaud 10} Sunaauiua
Suluiem | ST0Z/90/0€ 1310 peay e Yoea] -24nndisesiul Tq 4 g HI9zZe6Nd 858t
00:00 SHWI| UOISSIWD .
3uiuiem | ST0Z/90/0€ ses ||ljpue| Jo yoeaig JIe-suoissiwg 18 LTE HI9z/Z6N4g 8898Tre
T°S’g uolpuo)
Y3m auj| ui Sulojuow
2 elIpuUN 01 AUN|IR} pue
00:00 191BMpPUNOIS J0} SHWI| Jajempunoss
Suiuiem | ST0Z/90/0€ 2ouel|dwod Jo Yydoeaug pue pue|-suoIssiwl g9 | ‘T'S'ESTE Higzi6Ng 888Tve
SIW? JO
00:00 SHWI| speay Juanaud 10j Suliasuidua
Suluiep | STOZ/¥0/0€ 21eydea| Jo yoeauq -2in1onJiselju| Tq '8¢ HI9zZZ6Ng T648€T
Hwuad 3yl yum aui
ul SuloluowW yelIspun
00:00 01 2.n|ie} pue sywi| J31empunous
3ululep | STOZ/¥0/0E | 491EMpPUNOIS JO Yoealg pue puej-suoIssiwg 73 | ‘T°S'€ 'S'T'E HI9Z/6Nng T6L8ET
Ajuo 00:1T 19A02 oueldadde sjelualeWw
dUepPIND/ADIAPY | ST0Z/L0/60 oAIssauSoud Jo yoe -luswaSeue|y |eIBUID €2 Tt Hi9z/6Nd [G/8ET
‘uonn|jod
Aluo ‘Op:GT | asned 03 Aj@yjl| s|an9)| 18
SOUBPIND/3VIAPY | STOZ/L0/90 | SUSs o parda1ap Jnopo Jnopo-Ajuawy T4 ‘T'EE HI9zZ/6Ng 9T/8€T

Page 34



8l Jo G| abed

SIW? JO
0TI pung uoI1133s4a1ul ‘Juanauid Joj BuliaauiSus
suluiepy | 9T0Z/€0/70 Suiddoyiano ajeyoea -a4njonJiseqju| 1q 1€ HI9Z/6Nd 69¢€617¢
00:TT $9241 1uddelpe ul aus 218 Jan|/sa4qiy/isnp
Suluiem | 910Z/70/6T 30 JUaPIAD ||11S 1o -Aiuswy g4 TTE HI9Z/6N4 Z16817T
‘uolesLIaldeIY)
oiseg Ajaejnaiied :
0T:60 ‘dvM Juswajdwil 2oueldadde sjelalew
Suluiem | STOZ/SO/ZT Aj@1enbape 03 aunjie4 -judwaseue| |el3uan €3 i HigzLeNd 9€9S1e
SSI0T d90 uodn JalempunoJd3d
Bulutep | STOZ/ZT/OT | paredwi sey sieyoed pue puej-suolssiwg g3 TCE HI9ZL6Nd 8TSS¥TT
"191eMpunoss
uo Sujoedwi Inoyealq
SS:I0T 21eyoea] uanaid swalsAs Juswaseuew
Suluiem | STOZ/ZT/0T Al21enbape 03 aunjiey -juswaseuey |eI3USD 72 ‘)T HI9ZZ6Nd 8TSSPT
puod Buduejeq
uodn pajeduwi pue
d1004 T T |90 uodn
St:0T papedwi sey g |20 Ja1empunossd
Buluiepy | STOZ/TT/9Z | wouy Inoyealq a1eydea] pUB pUB|-SUOISSIWT 73 TTe HI9z/6N4g YS61IT
‘1192
punoJe aunjonJisesyul
SY:0T Juswiuleluod alenbape Swa1sAs Juswaseuew
Suluiep | STOZ/TT/9C 2INsua 0] aunjie4 -juswaseuep |BJBUID 7D ‘o)1 Hi9zZ6Nd YS6YT
AduaBy
Ajuo 00:00 0} ‘udiirou pue Suiodal
20UepINS/30IApY | STOZ/TT/TO suJnial a1sem e -SpJ023yY @ UOIN 3 6TV Higz/6Ng 881
‘ puod Supuejeq uodn
ST:0T paedwi sey S |[9) J91eMpUnoss
Buluwiep | STOZ/TT/ET | wJoj Inoyealq 91eydea] pue puej-suoissiwg s T'TE HI9z/6Ndg 168EvC

Page 35



8l Jo 9| abed

‘uonnjjod
S:0T | 9sned 01 Ajyl| S|aAd)| 1.
UoIY JAYMN4 ON | 9T0Z/80/ZT | Pa12313p SINOPO BMS-}0 inopo-Ajuswy T4 TEE HI9Z/6Ndg E£EESST
PI2YaPIRIA O 33e[|IA 3y}
ul pa3Ia1ap 249M ||Iipue]
LSTT SU31 YUM pajerosse
uondy J3yung oN | 910Z/£0/L0 $INopo 3Xs JO Inopo-Ajuawy T4 TEE HI9ZL6Ng TLIVST
Jalempunoug uo
1edwi 03 ARy st yarym
spung jJuawWuIU0D
ulyim g 120
0S:0T WwoJ} 91eYyoea| uieuod Ja1empunolg
suluiem | 9T0Z/¥0/90 Aj1enbape oy aunjiey pue pueg|-suolssiwg 3 ‘T'TE HI9Z/6N4d SPT1SC
ll4puUel 3yl yum
Ajuo 0S:ET pa1eI1D0SSe paldal1ap
32UepINY/3VIAPY | 9TOZ/€0/6T | 39 PIN0I SINOPO 3US-HO inopo-Ajluswy T4 TEE HI9Z/6N4g 9801S¢
Adualy
Ajuo 00:00 01 “udynou pue Surodal
22UBpPIND/AIAPY | 9T0Z/Z0/TO suiniaJl a1sem aie -Sp1023Y ) UO 18 611 HI9ZZ6N9 /69057
"Yyoeauq OTINd
pue Jajempunous Joj Adua8y
00:00 | suonediizou g INPaydIs 0} "udijizou pue Suiniodal
ujusep | STOZ/60/0€ apinosd 03 aunjiey -SpJ0J3y g UOIN 18 TEV HI9Z/6N4g Z8105¢
SIW? Jo
00:00 sywi| 2oueldwod ‘JuaAaad Joj SunisauiSua
8uluiem | STOZ/60/0€ | peay aieyoes| Jo yoeaig -ainpnaisenu Iq 8T HIgz/6Ng Z8T0ST
T°9°¢€ uonipuo) yum
3ul| Ul JOlUOW 01 aun|ie}
00:00 pue #A\D Yum suwij| J91empunoug
Suluiem | STOZ/60/0€ | 491MpUNOIS JO Yoeaug pue puej-suolssiwg za | ‘I'S'€ ‘S’ T's HigzZ6Ng Z810S?

Page 36



gl jo L} sbed

‘ue|d
uoIeIIUNWWOY) YHM Aduady
Ajuo 00:00 | aul ul awisal Sunsay ul 01 "udiilou pue Suipiodal
‘mucmu_:w\mu_%« 9102/0T/97 | @8ueyd Ajizou 03 aun|ied -SpJoJay g UON 78 9'9°¢ HiIgZ/6N4g 00€8S¢
'v3 Aq panoadde
pue papiwgns Suiaq Siw? Jo
Ajuo 0S:0T uodal uonepijea Yoo JuaAa4d Jo} SuiaauiSua
S0UBPINH/VIAPY | 9T0Z/60/0€ | ©03Joud qTT (12D 40 3sn -ainjonJiseliu] Tq 7'9°¢C Hi9zi6Nng 08e/S¢T
ST:TI SINopo 31Is
Sulusepy | 9T0Z/60/T0 | -40 J0) yoeaiq Sui08-up Jnopo-Auuawy T T'ee HI9z/6Ng 9%7£952
sinopo :
2)1S-1J0 01 Bulpes) si
ST:TT | Y21Ym SUOISSIWS ddepns swia3sAs uswadeuew
Suiuiem | 910Z/60/10 93euew 0} ainjied -Juswaseuey |eJ3UID 72 TET HI9zZZ6Nnd 9%€95T
(1/3wgy)
uag0J1IN |BJIUOWIWY J0J
1w soueldwod anoqe
00T Apueaiiudis a8ieyasig J21EM
Suluiem | 9102/£0/0T 191B\ 93BJINS 9JBINS-SUOISSIWT €3 TT¢ Hi9zZe6Ng VEESST

Page 37



Environment
Agency

A

THIS PAGE IS LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK

Environment Agency, Crosskill House, Mill Lane, Beverley, HU17 9JW
Customer Services Line: 08708 506 506

Email: enquiries@environment-agency.gov.uk

www.gov.uk

Page 38



Agenda Item 9

I eeds Report author: Angela Brogden
ﬁm Tel: 247 4553

Report of Head of Governance and Scrutiny Support
Report to Scrutiny Board (Environment and Housing)
Date: 8t December 2016

Subject: Work Schedule

Are specific electoral Wards affected? [ ] Yes X No

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s):

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and [ ] Yes X No
integration?

Is the decision eligible for Call-In? [ ] Yes X No
Does the report contain confidential or exempt information? [] Yes X No

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number:

Appendix number:

Summary of main issues

1. The Board’s work schedule is attached as appendix 1. This will be subject to change
throughout the municipal year.

2. Also attached at appendix 2 are the minutes of the Executive Board meeting held on
16" November 2016.

Recommendation
3.  Members are asked to consider the work schedule and make amendments as

appropriate.

Background documents’

4. None used

" The background documents listed in this section are available to download from the Council’s website,
unless they contain confidential or exempt information. The list of background documents does not include
published works.

Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank



Scrutiny Board (Environment and Housing) Work Schedule for 2016/2017 Municipal Year

Appendix 1

Schedule of meetings/visits during 2016/17

June

July

August

Main Theme — Community Safety

Refreshed Safer Leeds Plan 2016-2017
SB 07/07/16 @ 10 am

Inquiry into Air Quality

Scope terms of reference
WG meeting — 21/07/16

General Briefings

%
£
=

Scrutiny Board Terms of Reference and
Sources of Work
SB 09/06/16 @ 10 am

Crime and Disorder Scrutiny in Leeds
SB 09/06/16 @ 10 am

Budget and Policy
Framework/Pre-decision
Scrutiny

Lettings Policy Review - Consultation
Update
SB 07/07/16 @ 10 am

Recommendation Tracking

Domestic Violence
SB 07/07/16 @ 10 am

Performance Monitoring

General performance update
SB 07/07/16 @ 10 am

Key: SB - Scrutiny Board (Environment and Housing) Meeting

WG — Working Group Meeting




U
QD

Scrutiny Board (Environment and Housing) Work Schedule for 2016/2017 Municipal Year

Schedule of meetings/visits during 2016/17

September

October

November

Main Theme - Environment

Main Theme — Housing

Main Theme — Community Safety

To consider the following matters:

e Addressing areas of underperformance in
recycling

e Engaging communities in the recycling
agenda

e Reviewing existing recycling services and
recyclates

e Maintenance of gullies

SB 22/09/16 @ 10 am

To consider the following matters:

Implications and progress surrounding
the Housing and Planning Bill 2015
The quality of private rented sector
housing in Leeds

Turnaround times for filling void council
properties

SB 13/10/16 @ 10 am

To consider the following matters:

Tackling begging across the city
The future provision of CCTV
Addressing anti-social behaviour
Addressing youth offending

SB 24/11/16 @ 10 am

=
@Anquiry into Air
Quality

Agree terms of reference
SB 22/09/16 @ 10 am

Session 1 of the inquiry
WG 17/11/16 @ 12.30 pm

General Briefings

Air quality management and monitoring of the
Recycling and Energy Recovery Facility and
surrounding area.

SB 22/09/16 @ 10 am

Budget and Policy
Framework/Pre-
decision Scrutiny

Lettings Policy Review
SB 13/10/16 @ 10 am

Recommendation
Tracking

Peckfield Landfill Site
SB 22/09/16 @ 10 am

Performance
Monitoring

Key: SB - Scrutiny Board (Environment and Housing) Meeting

WG — Working Group Meeting




Scrutiny Board (Environment and Housing) Work Schedule for 2016/2017 Municipal Year

Schedule of meetings/visits during 2016/17

December

January

February

Main Theme - Environment

Main Theme - Housing

Main Theme — Community Safety

To consider the following matters:

e A general update on Peckfield Landfill Site,
including a response from the Environment | e

Agency.

SB 08/12/16 @ 10 am

To consider the following matters:
(these are subject to change)

Implications and progress surrounding

the Housing and Planning Bill 2015

e The quality of private rented sector
housing in Leeds

e Turnaround times for filling void council
properties

e Tenant Scrutiny Board

SB 19/01/17 @ 10 am

To consider the following matters:
(these are subject to change)

Tackling begging across the city
The future provision of CCTV
Addressing anti-social behaviour
Addressing youth offending
Pubwatch scheme

SB 16/02/17 @ 10 am

-
%nquiry into Air
C%Quallty

Session 2 of the inquiry
SB 08/12/16 @ 10 am

Session 3 & 4 of the inquiry (tbc)

Session 5 of the inquiry (tbc)

General Briefings

Budget and Policy
Framework/Pre-
decision Scrutiny

Initial budget proposals 2017-2018
SB 19/01/17 @ 10 am

Recommendation
Tracking

Performance
Monitoring

General performance update
SB 19/01/17 @ 10 am

Key: SB - Scrutiny Board (Environment and Housing) Meeting

WG — Working Group Meeting




Scrutiny Board (Environment and Housing) Work Schedule for 2016/2017 Municipal Year

Schedule of meetings/visits during 2016/17

March April May (tbc)
Main Theme - Environment Main Theme - Housing

To consider the following matters: To consider the following matters:
(these are subject to change) (these are subject to change)
e Addressing areas of underperformance in ¢ Implications and progress surrounding

recycling the Housing and Planning Bill 2015
e Engaging communities in the recycling e The quality of private rented sector

agenda housing in Leeds
e Reviewing existing recycling services and e Turnaround times for filling void council

recyclates properties

e Maintenance of gullies
SB 20/04/17 @ 10 am

o SB 23/03/17 @ 10 am
Q

ﬁnquiry into Air Agree final report
Quality SB 23/03/17 @ 10 am

General Briefings

Budget and Policy
Framework/Pre-
decision Scrutiny

Recommendation
Tracking

Performance
monitoring

Key: SB - Scrutiny Board (Environment and Housing) Meeting WG — Working Group Meeting



97

98

99

EXECUTIVE BOARD
WEDNESDAY, 16TH NOVEMBER, 2016
PRESENT: Councillor J Blake in the Chair

Councillors A Carter, R Charlwood,
D Coupar, S Golton, J Lewis, R Lewis,
L Mulherin, M Rafique and L Yeadon

Declaration of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
There were no declarations of interest made at the meeting.

Minutes of the Previous Meeting

RESOLVED - That the minutes of the previous meeting held on 19t October
2016 be approved as a correct record, subject to the resolutions within Minute
No. 83 (Outcome of the Call In of the Decision taken at Executive Board on
215t September 2016 in relation to the ‘Better Lives Programme: Phase Three:
Next Steps and Progress Report) being amended to read as follows:

(@)  That the Scrutiny Board’s recommendations, as detailed at 3.2.1 to
3.2.6 of the submitted report, be accepted, noting the additional
comments in relation to The Green, as per resolution (b) below;

(b)  That the original decisions taken by the Executive Board on 21st
September 2016, be re-affirmed, subject to The Green being retained
until there can be a seamless transition to the new facility;

(c)  Whilst the decision is to close The Green as a long term residential
care service, it will remain open until there is a transition to a new
function/ facility. The Board notes The Green will be retained as a
community asset and that discussions will continue with the NHS about
future use of the facility. A progress report, including an update on
discussions with the NHS, will be brought back to the Executive Board.
This update report to also provide information about how the seamless
transition would work, with any associated timescales;

(d)  That it be noted and highlighted that the input of the Scrutiny Board is
appreciated, and that it also be noted that the Scrutiny Board will be
kept informed in order to enable it to monitor the progress made
against any decisions taken.

Matters Arising from the Minutes
Minute No. 83 (Outcome of the Call In of the Decision taken at Executive

Board on 21st September 2016 in relation to the ‘Better Lives Programme:

Phase Three: Next Steps and Progress Report’)

Reassurance was sought that prior to the closure of the current facility at The
Green being implemented, a report on such matters would be submitted to

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 14th December, 2016

Page 45



100

Executive Board. In response, the Board was advised that The Green would
remain open until such time as a transition plan was in place, and that such
plans would be detailed within the report to be submitted to the February 2017
Board meeting.

Further to this, Councillor A Carter highlighted that although he was in
agreement with the amendment to the minutes which had been approved, he
reiterated his position, as stated at the 19t October 2016 meeting, to abstain
from voting on the Board’s decision to reaffirm the resolutions regarding the
‘Better Lives Programme’ made on 21st September 2016.

HEALTH, WELLBEING AND ADULTS

Safeguarding Adults Board: Annual Report 2015/16 and Strategic Plan
Further to Minute No. 91, 18" November 2015, the Director of Adult Social
Services submitted a report presenting the 2015/16 Leeds Safeguarding
Adults Board Annual Report and Strategic Plan. The documents summarised
the Board’s achievements during the previous 12 months and set out the
ambitions for the forthcoming year.

(The Board jointly considered this submitted report alongside the Leeds
Safeguarding Children Board Annual Report, as referenced at Minute No.
101).

The Board welcomed Richard Jones CBE, Independent Chair of the Leeds
Safeguarding Adults Board to the meeting, who was in attendance in order to
introduce the key points of the annual report and to highlight key priorities.
Mark Peel, Independent Chair of the Leeds Safeguarding Children Board, was
also in attendance during the consideration of this item and contributed
towards the discussion on related matters.

Responding to an enquiry, the Board, together with the Independent Chairs,
considered the role of the Safeguarding Boards in Leeds, and discussed the
nature of the relationship, together with the connectivity between those
Boards and the Local Authority. Members also discussed the role which could
be played by Elected Members in this area.

The Board also highlighted the importance of ensuring that the reporting
mechanisms for safeguarding concerns were as clear and effective as
possible.

In considering the procedures established to support individuals through the
transitional period between the safeguarding arrangements in place for young
people and the safeguarding arrangements in place for adults, it was
undertaken that a briefing paper on such matters would be provided to Board
Members for their information.

In conclusion, it was highlighted that the issue of safeguarding remained a top
priority for the Council and that a co-ordinated and partnership approach was

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 14th December, 2016

Page 46



101

taken in order to ensure that the safeguarding arrangements in place were as
effective as possible.

RESOLVED -

(@)  That the contents of the submitted covering report, the contents of the
Leeds Safeguarding Adults Board 2015/16 Annual Report and also in
looking forward, the contents of the Board’s Strategic Plan, as
appended, be noted;

(b)  That a briefing paper regarding the procedures established to support
individuals through the transitional period between the safeguarding
arrangements in place for young people and the safeguarding
arrangements in place for adults be provided to Board Members.

CHILDREN AND FAMILIES

Leeds Safeguarding Children Board Annual Report (2015/16): Evaluating
the Effectiveness of Safeguarding Arrangements in Leeds

Further to Minute No. 92, 18th November 2015, the Independent Chair of the
Leeds Safeguarding Children Board (LSCB) submitted a report which
introduced and presented the key issues from the LSCB Annual Report
(2015/16).

(The Board jointly considered this submitted report alongside the Leeds
Safeguarding Adults Board Annual Report, as referenced at Minute No. 100).

The Board welcomed Mark Peel, Independent Chair of the Leeds
Safeguarding Children Board, who was in attendance at the meeting in order
to introduce the key points of the annual report and to highlight key priorities.
As part of his introduction to the report, the Independent Chair highlighted and
welcomed the commitment which he had experienced to safeguarding issues
across the Council.

Richard Jones CBE, Independent Chair of the Leeds Safeguarding Adults
Board, was also in attendance during the consideration of this item.

RESOLVED -

(@)  That the contents of the submitted report, together with the LSCB’s
Annual Report, as appended, be noted, and that the Director of
Children’s Services be requested to consider any implications for the
work of Leeds City Council;

(b)  That a briefing paper regarding the procedures established to support
individuals through the transitional period between the safeguarding
arrangements in place for young people and the safeguarding
arrangements in place for adults be provided to Board Members.

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 14th December, 2016

Page 47



102

ECONOMY AND CULTURE

Growing the Leeds Economy

The Director of City Development submitted a report presenting the approach
to be taken in order to review and replace the Leeds Growth Strategy for
2017-2020. The report outlined the main issues and opportunities, whilst also
providing a timeframe for delivery. In addition, the report also provided an
update on developments in national policy relevant to the Growth Strategy
Review.

Members welcomed the proposal to review the current Growth Strategy, with
the Board specifically highlighting the need to focus upon areas such as:
‘social enterprise’, ‘health and medical’, manufacturing and retail. In addition,
emphasis was also placed upon the overriding ‘inclusive growth’ agenda and
the sense of place that was being given to the strategy.

Also, given the Government’s recent announcement regarding the HS2 route,
Members highlighted the key importance of increased connectivity for Leeds,
and emphasised the key role being played by the Leeds City Region in this
and other significant areas.

Finally, Members emphasised the need to ensure that the Leeds Growth
Strategy was used as a catalyst to maximise opportunities for all, with special
reference being made to young people.

RESOLVED -

(@) That the approach taken regarding the revision of the Leeds Growth
Strategy be noted, and the strategy’s publication in summer 2017 be
supported;

(b) That the approach towards strengthening the Council’s commitment to
working with other cities and city regions in order to develop the
Northern Powerhouse agenda, moving this beyond transport in order to
encompass education and skills, trade and investment, innovation and
enterprise, and housing, be supported,;

(c) That the Chief Executive be asked, in consultation with the Leader of the
Council, to prepare a submission to the RSA (Royal Society for the
encouragement of Arts, Manufactures & Commerce) Inclusive Growth
Commission, which sets out the practical steps being taken as a Council
under the ‘Strong Economy within a Compassionate City’ agenda;

(d) That the Chief Economic Officer, Economy and Regeneration, be
requested to work with Leeds City Region LEP and the Core Cities
Group, in consultation with the Leader of the Council, in order to
influence the development of the National Industrial Strategy.

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 14th December, 2016

Page 48



103

104

105

EMPLOYMENT, SKILLS AND OPPORTUNITY

Promoting Apprenticeships

The Director of Children’s Services submitted a report which presented the
actions being taken to work with young people, businesses, communities and
partners in order to ensure that young people in particular continued to benefit
from the opportunities offered by apprenticeships, whilst the report also set
out how the Council could most effectively align its resources to achieve this
goal.

Members welcomed the submitted report, and received a verbal update in
response to an enquiry regarding the availability of further data in respect of
the actions being taken to promote apprenticeships. In addition, with a view to
keeping Members informed on such matters, it was requested that an update
report be submitted to the Board providing further details on this issue, and
which also presented statistics on performance against relevant targets and
also the matter of job retention for those who had undertaken apprenticeships.

RESOLVED -
(@)  That the proposed activities, as set out within the submitted report, be
endorsed;

(b)  That an update report be submitted to the Board providing further
details on the promotion of apprenticeships, and which also presents
statistics on performance against relevant targets and the issue of job
retention for those who had undertaken apprenticeships.

RESOURCES AND STRATEGY

Financial Health Monitoring 2016/17 - Half Year

The Deputy Chief Executive submitted a report setting out the Council’s
projected financial health position for 2016/17 at the half-year point of the
financial year. The report also reviewed the position of the budget and
highlighted any potential key risks and variations after 6 months of the year.

Responding to a Member’s enquiry, officers undertook to provide the Member
in question with further information on the actions being taken within the area
of Civic Enterprise Leeds to replace the loss of 7 school catering contracts, as
detailed within the submitted report.

RESOLVED - That the Council’s projected financial position for 2016/17 at
the half year point of the financial year, as detailed within the submitted report,
be noted.

Capital Programme Quarter 2 Update 2016-2020

The Deputy Chief Executive submitted a report providing an update on the
Council’s Capital Programme position as at period 6. Additionally, the report
also sought some specific approvals in relation to funding injections.

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 14th December, 2016

Page 49



106

RESOLVED -

(@)

(b)

(c)

(e)

That the latest position, as at period 6, on the General Fund and
Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Capital programmes, be noted;

That the net increase in the General Fund and HRA Capital
Programme 2016-2020 of £68.8m since Quarter 1, be noted, with the
majority of these injections, £51.77m, relating to the inclusion of annual
programmes in 2019-20, as shown in Appendix B to the submitted
report, £45.9m of which is Council borrowing and £5.88m is grant and
external contributions;

That it be noted that the borrowing required to fund the Capital
Programme in 2016-17 has reduced by a further £11.8m since the
Quarter 1 update. It also be noted that the Capital Programme remains
affordable and that further work is underway through regular capital
programme reviews to ensure that future debt costs are maintained
within the overall Medium Term Financial strategy;

That the following injections into the Capital Programme, be approved:-
e £51.77m, to reflect the roll forward of annual programmes into
2019-20, as set out in Appendix B to the submitted report, funded
by £45.89m LCC borrowing and £5.88m grant;

e £9.0m, to reflect the forecasted 1 for 1 right to buy receipts for
2017/18 and 2018/19, which will be utilised within the Council
House Growth programme;

e £232.8k in relation to Capital Receipts, to be utilised by Ward
Councillors under the Capital Receipts Incentive Scheme (CRIS),
as detailed at Appendix D to the submitted report;

That it be noted that the above resolutions to inject funding will be
implemented by the Chief Officer (Financial Services);

That the £3.65m injection covered by the “Sustainable Communities
Investment Programme Review” report which is found elsewhere on
this Executive Board meeting agenda and which is included within the
figures detailed within this submitted report, be noted (Minute No. 108
refers).

Treasury Management Strategy Update 2016/17
The Deputy Chief Executive submitted a report providing a review and update
of the Council’s 2016/17 Treasury Management Strategy.

Responding to a Member’s enquiry, officers undertook to provide the Member
in question with further details on how the Council’s debt, asset and liability
levels compared to that of other Core Cities.

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 14th December, 2016

Page 50



107

108

In addition, responding to a further enquiry, the Board was also provided with
further information on the approach being taken by the Council to monitor and
minimise the cost of borrowing.

RESOLVED -
(@) That the update on the Treasury Management borrowing and investment
strategy for 2016/17, as detailed within the submitted report, be noted;

(b) That it be noted that full Council, at its meeting on the 9th November
2016, approved the changes to the borrowing limits for 2016/17, 2017/18
and 2018/19, as detailed in section 3.2 of the submitted report, with the
proposed changes to both the Operational Boundary and the Authorised
limits also being noted by the Board.

Aireborough Leisure Centre Refurbishment

The Director of City Development and the Assistant Chief Executive (Citizens
and Communities) submitted a joint report highlighting the refurbishment
works proposed to be undertaken at Aireborough Leisure Centre. The report
also sought the necessary authority to spend in order to carry out the
proposed works, whilst the report also highlighted a proposal for Guiseley
Library to relocate into Aireborough Leisure Centre, enabling the current
library building to be sold and thus generating a capital receipt.

The Board welcomed the proposals detailed within the submitted report, with
a Member highlighting that such a positive approach could be used as an
example in respect of future community hub provision.

RESOLVED -
(@)  That the design proposals for the proposed improvement and
refurbishment of Aireborough Leisure Centre, be agreed;

(b)  That the ring fencing of the capital receipt for Guiseley Library, circa
£200,000, to fund the relocation of the Library and creation of a
Community ‘Super’ Hub with café facility, be approved,;

(c)  That the necessary ‘authority to spend’ and funding of £1.2M for the
proposed improvement and refurbishment of Aireborough Leisure
Centre, be approved;

(d)  That it be noted that the Chief Officer for Culture and Sport is
responsible for the implementation of such matters.

COMMUNITIES

Investing in our Neighbourhoods - a review of the Sustainable
Communities Investment Programme and the opportunities for Holbeck
The Director of Environment and Housing and the Director of City
Development submitted a joint report which set out the approach that had
been taken to promote regeneration in Cross Green and the Nevilles through
the Sustainable Communities Investment Programme (SCIP), detailed the

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 14th December, 2016

Page 51



109

impact of the investment which had been made there and which also
highlighted the lessons that could be learned from an intensive and targeted
approach towards neighbourhood regeneration activities. In addition, the
report also outlined the work undertaken to date in Holbeck and how this
could be intensified through similar interventions. Finally, the report requested
an injection into the capital programme and sought related approval of
expenditure.

Members welcomed the information and the proposals detailed within the
submitted report, highlighting the anticipated positive impact that the approach
would have in Holbeck, and how, amongst other things, it would help address
the issue of fuel poverty in the area and contribute towards the Council’s
‘Cutting Carbon and Improving Air Quality’ Breakthrough Project.

RESOLVED -
(@) That the outcomes from SCIP, together with the lessons learned and
how they could inform future regeneration across the city, be noted;

(b) That the contribution from the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Housing
Leeds programme 2017/18 of £850.0k, be noted;

(c) That an injection into the capital programme of £3.65m be authorised, of
which £1.5m is secured funding from the Local Growth Fund, £0.2m
being Energy Company contributions, £0.45m being private sector
owners’ contributions, with the balance of £1.5m being from the capital
programme;

(d) That expenditure of £0.85m on the Council housing group repair in
Holbeck, which will address poor housing conditions and energy
efficiency, be authorised;

(e) That expenditure of £3.65m on the private sector housing group repair in
Holbeck, which will address poor housing conditions and energy
efficiency, be authorised;

(f)  That responsibility be delegated to the Chief Housing Officer, Housing
Leeds, in order to bring forward the group repair scheme.

ENVIRONMENT AND SUSTAINABILITY

Air Quality and Air Quality Update

The Director of Environment and Housing submitted a report which sought
approval to the revocation of the Air Quality Management Areas at Ladybeck
Close, Hunslet and Queen Street, Morley. In addition, the report also sought
approval to the establishment of an Order to designate the Main Street area of
Pool-in-Wharfedale and the Chapel Hill area of Morley as new Air Quality
Management Areas. In addition, the report also outlined the proposal to
undertake a review of air quality monitoring across the city and highlighted the
work which had been undertaken this year in respect of air quality.

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 14th December, 2016

Page 52



Members noted the recent national developments which had taken place in
respect of air quality, and also noted the intention to submit a further report to
Executive Board in 2017.

The Board highlighted the need to work closely with DEFRA on this issue, and
also acknowledged the differing methods used by DEFRA and the Council
with regard to the monitoring of air quality.

Finally, it was noted that the Scrutiny Board (Environment and Housing) was
undertaking an inquiry into this issue.

RESOLVED -
(@)  That the revocation of the Air Quality Management Areas at Ladybeck
Close, Hunslet and Queen Street, Morley, be approved;

(b)  That the making of an Order to designate the Main Street area of Pool-
in-Wharfedale and the Chapel Hill area of Morley as new Air Quality
Management Areas, be approved;

(c)  Thatit be noted that a review in respect of air quality monitoring across
the city is to be undertaken,;

(d)  That the work undertaken this year on air quality, together with the
timetable to report back to Executive Board in 2017, be noted.

DATE OF PUBLICATION: FRIDAY, 18™ NOVEMBER 2016

LAST DATE FOR CALL IN
OF ELIGIBLE DECISIONS: 5.00 P.M., FRIDAY, 25™ NOVEMBER 2016

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Wednesday, 14th December, 2016

Page 53



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	6 Minutes - 24 November 2016
	7 Scrutiny Inquiry into improving air quality in Leeds - session 2
	item 7 - Appendix 1- Scrutiny AQ Comms Report

	8 Peckfield Landfill Site - Update
	item 8 - appendix 1 - 161124 EA response Peckfield Scrutiny Board

	9 work schedule
	item 9 - appendix 1 - work schedule
	Appendix 2 - Printed minutes 16th-Nov-2016 13 00 Executive Board


